COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

between

TOWN OF COLCHESTER

and

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES UNION "INDEPENDENT" (MEUI)
LOCAL 506, SEIU, AFL-CIO, CLC

REPRESENTING
TOWN ADMINISTRATORS

July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2017

67213

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		TRIBLE OF CONTENTS	
Preamble			Page No.
ARTICLE	1:	Personition	1
ARTICLE	2:	Recognition Non Discrimination and Affirmative Action	1 1
ARTICLE	3:	Union Rights	2
ARTICLE	3. 4:	Prior Rights and Benefits	3
ARTICLE	5:	Prohibition of Strikes	3
	5. 6:		3
ARTICLE	7:	Bargaining Unit Work	
ARTICLE ARTICLE		Seniority Wasanajas	4
	8:	Vacancies	4
ARTICLE	9:	Hours of Work	5
ARTICLE	10:	Layoff & Recall	7
ARTICLE	11:	Job Descriptions	8
ARTICLE	12:	Performance Rating	8
ARTICLE	13:	Personnel Records	8
ARTICLE	14:	Sick Leave	9
ARTICLE	15:	Funeral Leave	10
ARTICLE	16:	Vacations	11
ARTICLE	17:	Personal Leave & Military Leave	12
ARTICLE	18:	Leave Balances	12
ARTICLE	19:	Holidays	12
ARTICLE	20:	Grievance Procedure	14
ARTICLE	21:	Insurance Benefits	16
ARTICLE	22:	401(a) Plan/Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan	19
ARTICLE	23:	Safety and Health	19
ARTICLE	24:	Wages	20
ARTICLE	25:	Disciplinary Action	20
ARTICLE	26:	Savings Clause	21
ARTICLE	27:	Union Convention/Training Sessions	22
ARTICLE	28:	Duration	22
ARTICLE	29:	Pregnancy Leave	22
ARTICLE	30:	Employee Milcage Expense Reimbursement	22
ARTICLE	31:	Uniforms	23
ARTICLE	32;	Volunteer Fire and Ambulance Duty	23
ARTICLE	33:	Probationary Period	23
ARTICLE	34:	Management Rights	24
ARTICLE	35;	Professional Development	25
Signature Page			26
APPENDIX A	Evaluat	ion Sheet	27
APPENDIX B	Salary l	Ranges	32
Side Letter of A		(Periodontal Rider)	34
		anding (Highway Supvr. & Fleet Main, Supvr.)	35
		ent (Highway Supervisor)	36
APPENDIX C		Insurance Plan Summaries	37

PREAMBLE

This Agreement is made and entered into, by and between the Town of Colchester (hereinafter referred to as the "Town") and the Municipal Employees Union "Independent" (hereinafter referred to as the "Union").

ARTICLE 1 Recognition

Section 1.

The Town of Colchester herein recognizes the Municipal Employees Union Independent, Inc., as the exclusive bargaining representative of the following Administrative employees, whose job titles and/or job classifications were placed within the Administrative Unit by the Connecticut State Board of Labor under ME-19,290 or by agreement of the parties: Highway Supervisor, Fleet Maintenance Supervisor, Assessor, Social Services Director, Fire Marshal, Youth Services Director, Engineer, Water Department Supervisor, Zoning Enforcement Officer/Assistant Planner, and Finance Director.

The Town of Colchester herein recognizes the inclusion of positions of Wetlands Enforcement Officer and Director of Senior Services into the Local 506 (Town Administrative) Bargaining Unit through a Letter of Agreement signed on November 11, 2006. The Town of Colchester herein recognizes the inclusion of the Director of Library Services effective upon ratification of this Agreement.

Section 2.

Whenever the word "Town" is used in the agreement, it shall mean the Town of Colchester. Likewise, when the word "Union" is used it shall mean the Municipal Employees Union Independent. When the word "employee" is used it shall mean an employee in the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE 2 Non Discrimination and Affirmative Action

Section 1.

The parties agree that neither shall discriminate against any employee on the basis of race, color, religious creed, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, marital status, physical or mental disability which is unrelated to the ability of the employee to perform a particular job, sexual orientation, military service, or lawful political activity.

Section 2.

The Town shall not discriminate against an employee on the basis of membership or non-membership or lawful activity on behalf of the bargaining unit.

Section 3.

No employee shall be coerced or intimidated or suffer any reprisal, either directly or indirectly, as a result of the exercise of his/her rights under this agreement.

ARTICLE 3 Union Rights

Section 1.

The Town shall deal exclusively with the Union-designated steward or staff representative in the processing of grievances or any other aspect of the contract administration.

Section 2.

During the terms of this contract or extension thereof, all employees in the Collective Bargaining Unit shall, from the effective date of the contract or within seven (7) days from the date of their employment by the Town, as a condition of employment, either become or remain members of the Union in good standing or, in lieu of Union membership, pay to the Union a service fee. The amount of service fees shall not exceed the minimum applicable dues paid to the Union.

Section 3.

The Town agrees to immediately deduct from the pay of the bargaining unit members such membership dues, initiation fees, service fees, or reinstatement of service fees as may be fixed by the Union. Such deductions shall continue for the duration of the Agreement or any extension thereof. The Town agrees to voluntary payroll deductions for the Union's Political Action Fund. The Union agrees to indemnify and save the Town harmless against any and all claims, damages, suits or other forms of liability that shall arise out of or by reason of action or inaction taken by the Town for the purpose of complying with the provisions of this Section.

Section 4.

The Union shall supply to the Town written notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of any change in rates of fees and dues. In addition, the Union shall furnish the Town with a statement signed by the employee authorizing the Town to make dues deduction(s). Service fees shall be deducted automatically by the Town.

Section 5.

The deduction of Union fees and dues or service fees for any month shall be made on a biweekly basis during the applicable month and shall be remitted to the Financial Officer of the Union. The monthly dues and/or service fee remittances to the Union will be accompanied by the list of names of employees from whose wages dues deductions have been made. The Union agrees to indemnify and to hold and save the Town harmless against any and all claims, damages, and suits that shall or may arise out of or by reason of any action taken by the Town for the purpose of complying with the provisions of this Article.

Section 6.

No dues or fees will be deducted from an employee who is on leave of absence and has exhausted accumulated sick leave.

Section 7.

- a) The Union-designated steward shall be granted leave from duty without loss of pay or benefits for all grievance meetings between the Town and the Union, arbitration hearings and hearings before the State Board of Labor Relations when such meetings take place at a time during which the Union-designated steward is scheduled to be on duty.
- b) A Union-designated steward shall have reasonable access to the work site without loss of pay or benefits for the purpose of conferring with the Employer or employees, and for the purpose of administering this Agreement after first receiving permission from his/her immediate supervisor.
- e) Where the Union Staff Representative finds it necessary to enter the work site, he/she shall first advise the First Selectman or his/her designee. Such visits shall not unduly interfere with the operation of Town business.

Section 8.

The Town shall provide each member of the bargaining unit a copy of this contract within 10 days of its signing. Likewise the Town agrees to provide a copy of the contract and the name of the Union Steward or Staff Representative to all new bargaining unit members within one week of their date of initial hire.

Section 9.

The Town will provide the Union with two (2) signed contracts after the signing of the agreement,

ARTICLE 4 Prior Rights and Benefits

This Collective Bargaining Agreement contains the complete agreement of the parties with regard to all issues related to employees' wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment.

ARTICLE 5 Prohibition of Strikes

During the term of this Agreement, the Union shall not authorize, cause, engage in, sanction or assist in any work stoppage, strike or slow-down of operations.

ARTICLE 6 Bargaining Unit Work

Section 1.

Subcontractors will not be used to reduce overtime or eliminate the standard work force or eliminate the hours that bargaining unit members' work.

ARTICLE 7 Seniority

Section 1.

Seniority shall be defined as status for specific purposes based on an employee's full-time continuous service with the Town, including all authorized paid or unpaid leave providing the employee returns to work immediately at the conclusion of such leave.

The Town shall prepare a list of all employees covered by this Agreement showing their seniority by length of service and deliver the same to the Union office by July 1, of each year.

No employee shall attain seniority rights under this Agreement until he/she has been continuously on the payroll of the Town for a period of 90 calendar days. Upon completion of this period, the name of the new employee shall be added to the seniority list, his/her time commencing on the date of his/her employment.

Section 2.

Until expiration of the first one hundred and cighty (180) calendar days of work (any lost time will extend the probationary period), an employee may be terminated by the Town in its sole discretion for any reason whatsoever and neither the employee nor the Union, on his/her behalf, shall have recourse to the grievance or arbitration provisions of this Agreement. The probationary period may be extended by the Town in the discretion of the First Selectman for an additional period not to exceed ninety (90) calendar days.

Section 3.

Seniority shall be lost only by the following events: Unauthorized absences for five (5) days without notifying the Town in writing unless failure to do so is beyond the employee's control; discharge for cause; resignation; layoff in excess of recall period; and failure to report for duty within five (5) days after notification of recall unless such time limit is waived. Seniority accumulation shall be suspended (but not lost) during layoff or during long-term leave of absence without pay (more than thirty (30) days) or leave due to job-related injury or illness which exceeds twelve (12) months.

Section 4.

Seniority shall not be lost by vacation, sick time, job related injuries (provided the employee returns to work), authorized leaves of absence, suspension, or any qualified military service as required by law, up to any limits provided for in this Agreement.

ARTICLE 8 Vacancies

Section 1.

Job vacancy is defined as an opening created by death, retirement, resignation, dismissal or transfer, or the creation of a new position in the bargaining unit. All jobs including upgradings shall be posted.

Section 2.

Prior to filling any vacant bargaining unit position, the employer shall first send notice of any such vacancy to the Union and the Union-designated steward and shall concurrently post a notice of the vacancy where such notices are normally posted. Such notice shall be posted for not less than five (5) calendar days, and the position shall not be filled prior to the expiration of the posting period.

Section 3.

Provided that no employee has recall rights to a vacant position, each vacancy may be filled by promotion based on ability, experience and seniority as reasonably determined by the Town. The Town may also fill the vacancy from outside the bargaining unit, as the Town deems appropriate, if the outside applicant possesses greater skill, experience or ability, as reasonably determined by the Town, than an existing member of the bargaining unit applying for the vacancy.

Section 4.

When an employee is temporarily retained in a vacancy or new position for a period of ninety (90) calendar days, he/she shall be considered qualified and allocated to said position if the position continues to exist; otherwise, he/she shall be returned to his/her former position.

Section 5.

During the period the employee is temporarily retained in a vacancy or new position which has a higher maximum rate of pay, he/she shall temporarily be paid at minimum 2% above his/her current wage rate but no more than the maximum of the range of the higher classification.

ARTICLE 9 Hours of Work

Section 1.

Normal Workweek/Workday. Subject to the operating needs of the Town, the Fire Marshal, <u>Director of Operations</u>, Fleet Maintenance Supervisor, Water Department Supervisor, Zoning Enforcement Officer/Assistant Planner, Town Engineer, Director of Senior Services, and Director of Library Services will generally work no less than forty (40) hours per week Monday through Friday; the Finance Director will generally work no less than thirty-seven and one-half (37.5) hours per week Monday through Friday; and the Assessor, Youth Services Director, Social Services Director, and Wetlands Enforcement Officer will generally work no less than thirty-five (35) hours per week Monday through Friday. Subject to the operating needs of the Town, the normal workday for each position shall generally be as follows:

Position	Normal Workday	Lunch
Fire Marshal Director of Operations Fleet Maintenance Supervisor Town Engineer Assessor Youth Services Director Social Services Director Water Department Supervisor ZEO/Assistant Planner Finance Director Wetlands Enforcement Officer	8:30 a.m 4:30 p.m. 7:00 a.m 3:30 p.m. 7:00 a.m 3:30 p.m. 8:30 a.m 4:30 p.m. 8:30 a.m 4:30 p.m. 8:30 a.m 4:30 p.m. 8:30 a.m 4:30 p.m. 8:00 a.m 4:30 p.m. 8:00 a.m 4:30 p.m. 8:30 a.m 4:30 p.m.	"on fly" ½ hr. unpaid ½ hr. unpaid "on fly" 1 hr. unpaid 1 hr. unpaid 1 hr. unpaid ½ hr. unpaid ½ hr. unpaid ½ hr. unpaid ½ hr. unpaid 1 hr. unpaid
Director of Senior Services Director of Library Services	8:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m. 8:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m.	½ hr. unpaid ½ hr. unpaid

It is mutually understood and agreed that the normal workweek/workday for any employee will vary from time to time subject to the requirements of the job and the operating needs of the Town as directed by the First Selectman or his/her designee. The First Selectman or his/her designee will meet with employees at least two (2) weeks in advance to discuss any change in the employee's work schedule which may last for more than a two (2) week period. Members of the bargaining unit will be required to attend evening meetings or meetings at other times outside of the employee's normal work schedule. The Town agrees to notify the Union and to negotiate over the impact of any permanent schedule change.

Section 2.

Compensatory Time. Compensatory time off may be granted to bargaining unit members at the discretion of the First Selectman when he/she deems that an extraordinary amount of time is or was required to be worked. Compensatory time may be granted on an hour-for-hour basis. Compensatory time must be taken within ninety (90) days of being granted except in exceptional circumstances as approved by the First Selectman. Compensatory time shall not, under any circumstances, be granted for job-related seminars or conferences.

Financial compensation for compensatory time shall not be allowed under any circumstances at termination of employment. The decision to approve or disapprove compensatory time by the First Selectman shall not be subject to the provisions of the grievance procedure contained in this Agreement unless the Union argues that such decision was made in an arbitrary or capricious manner in relation to compensatory time granted to other employees in substantially comparable circumstances. For the sole purpose of approving and tracking compensatory time or the need for such time, bargaining unit employees will be required to document all hours worked.

ARTICLE 10 Layoff & Recall

Section 1.

In the event of a reduction in the work force and subsequent recall to work, the provisions of this article shall be controlling.

Section 2.

When the Town determines that a reduction in the work force is necessary, the Town shall notify the Union and shall meet to discuss the possible alternative proposals (1) to avoid the layoff or (2) to mitigate the impact on the employee(s).

Section 3.

When it becomes necessary for the Town to reduce the work force the Town shall give not less than four (4) weeks written notice to the affected employees.

Section 4.

The Town will lay off on the basis of seniority within job titles, with the least senior employee in a job title being laid off first.

Section 5.

Likewise, if there is a recall to work the Town shall recall laid off employees on the basis of seniority within a job title, with the most senior employee within a job title being recalled first.

Section 6.

Recall rights shall expire twelve (12) months after an employee is laid off. Additionally, if an employee declines a recall opportunity, or fails to respond to a recall opportunity within five (5) days of mailing (certified or registered mail, return receipt requested) of the notice of the recall opportunity by the Town, the employee shall forfeit all recall rights.

Section 7.

Recalled employees shall return to the same status they held on the date of lay off in terms of classification, pay rate within classification, vacation and sick leave accumulation, if any, seniority, and all other benefits.

Section 8.

No seasonal or part-time employee in a department will be used to perform bargaining unit work while other employees in the department are on lay off.

ARTICLE 11 Job Descriptions

The Town shall have the right to create and revise job descriptions, subject to the Union's right to negotiate the impact, if any, of any change in a job description. Prior to creating or revising a job description, the Town will provide an opportunity for the Union to have input into the process. The Union has the right to request that the Town review and/or revise a job description.

ARTICLE 12 Performance Rating

Section 1.

Each employee will be evaluated by the end of May of each year.

Section 2.

The employee shall be given a copy of any performance rating report which he/she is required to sign at the time of receipt. An employee's signature on such form shall not be construed to indicate agreement or approval of the rating by the employees.

Section 3.

Prior to revising the performance rating form, the Town will provide an opportunity for the Union to have input into the process.

ARTICLE 13 Personnel Records

Section I.

An employee covered hereunder shall, on his/her request, be permitted to examine and copy any and all materials in his/her personnel file. The Union may have access to any employee's records upon presentation of written authorization by the appropriate employee.

Section 2.

No new negative or derogatory material shall be placed in an employee's personnel file unless the employee has had an opportunity to sign it (indicating receipt of such material). If the employee refuses to sign, a Union steward or Staff Representative shall sign the material (indicating receipt) and be provided a copy. A copy shall be given at the time of signing. At any time, an employee may file a written rebuttal to such materials. An employee may file a grievance objecting to any negative or derogatory material placed in his/her personnel file but such grievances will not be arbitrable under Article 20, Section 4, Step IV of this Agreement unless the employee suffers loss or if the material is considered disciplinary under Article 25, Section 1 of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 14 Sick Leave

Section 1.

All bargaining unit employees shall accrue sick leave for continuous service upon hire and shall be cligible to use such time after completion of the probationary period. Sick leave accrues at the rate of one (1) working day per completed calendar month of continuous full-time service, including authorized leave with pay, not to exceed twelve days sick leave per year, provided that:

- a. Such leave starts to accrue only on the first working day of the calendar month and is credited to the eligible employee at the end of the calendar month.
- b. An eligible employee employed on less than a full-time basis shall be granted leave in proportion to the amount of time worked as recorded in the attendance and leave records;
- c. No such leave will accrue for any calendar month in which an employee is on leave of absence without pay an aggregate of more than fourteen (14) working days;
- d. Sick leave shall accrue for the first twelve (12) months in which an employee is receiving workers' compensation benefits.

Section 2.

Sick leave pay shall be granted to eligible employees and shall be at the employee's base rate of pay:

- a. When incapacitated from performing work due to illness or injury;
- b. For medical, dental or eye examination or treatment for which arrangements cannot be made outside of working hours.
- c. In the event of an emergency due to a serious illness or injury to a member of the immediate family (as defined in Article 15, Section 1), provided that not more than five (5) days of sick leave per calendar year shall be granted with the approval of the supervisor for such purpose.
- d. For going to, attending, and returning from funerals of persons other than members of the employee's family, if notice is given in advance and provided that not more than three (3) days of sick leave per calendar year shall be granted for such purpose. Additional time may be granted to attend other funerals with the approval of the supervisor.
- e. Payment for any lost time from work due to an on-the-job injury for which the employee is not eligible for compensation under the Workers' Compensation Act.
- f. An employee may use accumulated sick leave to make up the difference between workers' compensation payments and the employee's regular pay.

Section 3.

If an employee is sick while on vacation leave, the time shall be charged against accrued sick leave if supported by a medical certificate filed with the supervisor. If an employee attends a funeral during his/her vacation, such attendance will be charged to funeral leave or sick leave in accordance with the applicable contract provision. A holiday occurring when an employee is on sick leave shall be counted as a holiday and not charged as sick leave.

Section 4.

An employee who has been laid off from Town service in good standing and who is re-employed within one (1) year from the effective date of his/her layoff shall retain sick leave accrued to his/her credit as of the effective date of his/her layoff.

Section 5.

Each employee who retires or resigns with ten or more years of service with the Town will be paid for accumulated sick leave at the base rate of pay. Employees hired after July 1, 2015 shall be eligible for this benefit, for up to thirty (30) days. Upon death, the employee's designated beneficiary shall be paid for accumulated sick leave at the base rate of pay.

Section 6.

Employees will have the right to accumulate up to 60 days of sick leave. For the sole purpose of bridging the ninety (90) day waiting period for Long Term Disability (LTD) insurance under Article 21, Section 8, employees may accumulate up to 30 additional days of sick leave which can also be drawn from in special circumstances involving serious health conditions at the discretion of the First Selectman.

ARTICLE 15 Funeral Leave

Section 1.

In the event of a death in the immediate family of a full time employee, leave consisting of three (3) consecutive working days shall be granted. The employee shall be paid his/her regular rate for any of the three (3) consecutive working days which fall within his/her regularly scheduled shift and for which he/she attends the funeral. The term "immediate family" shall include the employees' spouse or partner in a civil union, child, parent, grandparent, sibling, mother or father in-law, grandchild, or any other relative who is living in the employee's household.

Section 2,

In the event of the death of a brother or sister in-law, aunt, uncle, nicce or nephew of the employee or of his/her spouse or partner in a civil union, one (1) paid day leave shall be allowed as long as the employee attends the funeral and the day of the funeral is a regularly scheduled work day.

Section 3.

The First Selectman may, in his/her discretion, grant additional time off for funeral leave which will be deducted from an employee's vacation time, or personal days.

ARTICLE 16 Vacations

Section 1.

All full-time employees shall receive their vacation time on January 1st of each year based on prior year's accrual. Employees will accrue vacation days based on completed years of service as follows:

Length of Service	Annual Vacation	Accrual Rate
1 year completed	1 week (5 days)	5/12 day per month
2-7 years completed	2 weeks (10 days)	5/6 day per month
8-14 years completed	3 weeks (15 days)	1 ¼ day/month
15-19 years completed	4 weeks (20 days)	1 ^{2/3} day/month
20+ years	5 weeks (25 days)	2 ^{1/12} day/month

New employees, after successfully completing their probationary period, shall earn 5/12 of a day of vacation per month, provided that the Town reserves the right to grant up to 1 ¼ days of vacation per month for new employees who have completed at least 8 years of service in a prior position(s) or who were earning at least 3 weeks of vacation per year before accepting employment with the Town.

Section 2.

Employees will be allowed to carry over accrued but unused vacation days to a maximum accumulation of 30 days.

Section 3.

- a. Requests for vacation in weekly increments shall be submitted for approval to the First Selectman or his/her designee in writing at least ten (10) business days in advance.
- b. Normally, individual vacation days will be requested three or more days in advance, but an employee may request such time with 24 hours notice. In case of emergency or unusual circumstances less than 24 hours notice may be given for vacation request.
- c. Any employee may take vacation days in conjunction with personal leave days, holidays or sick leave.

Section 4.

Upon termination or retirement each employee will be paid for accrued vacation at his/her current base rate of pay.

ARTICLE 17 Personal Leave, Military Leave and Jury Duty

Section 1.

In addition to annual vacation, each employee shall receive four (4) personal leave of absence days on January 1st of each calendar year with pay provided twenty-four (24) hours notice is given to the employee's immediate supervisor concerning non-emergency requests. Personal leave is to be used for transacting personal affairs which cannot be conducted during non-work hours. Use of personal leave of absence days for emergency purposes will be permitted with less than twenty-four (24) hour notice. Personal leave shall not be deducted from vacation or sick time credits. Personal leave days not taken in a calendar year shall not be accumulated.

Section 2.

Military leave and the rights and benefits associated therewith shall be provided in accordance with State and Federal law (USERRA), as it may be amended from time to time. During such leave, the employer will pay the difference between the employee's military pay and his/her regular rate of pay for a normal work week for up to a maximum of twelve (12) months of leave.

Section 3.

An employee called to serve as a juror will receive his/her pay less pay received as a juror for each work day while on Jury Duty. An employee on jury duty shall report to work unless directed to report to Court to serve on jury duty. If an employee receives a subpoena or other order of the Court requiring an appearance during regular working hours for Town related actions, time off with pay and without loss of earned leave time shall be granted for town-related actions. In all other cases, employees may use vacation or personal time.

ARTICLE 18 Leave Balances

The Town shall notify each employee of his/her leave balances.

ARTICLE 19 Holidays

Section 1. Holidays will be observed as follows:

New Year's Day

Sun: Fri. one-half day to Tues. 7 a.m. Mon: Fri. one-half day to Tues. 7 a.m. Tues: Mon. one-half day to Wed. 7 a.m. Wed: Tues. one-half day to Thurs. 7 a.m. Thurs: Wed. one-half day to Fri. 7 a.m. Fri: Thurs. one-half day to Mon. 7 a.m. Sat: Thurs. one-half day to Mon. 7 a.m.

Martin Luther King Day (One day only)

Sat: Closed Fri. Sun: Closed Mon.

Lincoln's Birthday

Floater

<u>Presidents' Day</u> (One day only) Third Monday in February

Good Friday (One day only)

Memorial Day (One day only)
Last Monday in May

Independence Day (One day only)
Saturday - Closed Friday
Sunday - Closed Monday

<u>Labor Day</u> (One day only) First Monday in September

<u>Columbus Day</u> (One day only) Second Monday in October

<u>Veteran's Day</u> (One day only) Saturday - Closed Friday Sunday - Closed Monday

Thanksgiving Day & Day After

Thursday and Friday

Christmas Day

Sun: Friday one-half day to Tues. 7 a.m. Mon: Friday one-half day to Tues. 7 a.m. Tues: Mon. one-half day to Wed. 7 a.m. Wed: Tues. one-half day to Thurs. 7 a.m. Thurs: Wed. one-half day to Fri. 7 a.m. Fri: Thurs, one-half day to Mon. 7 a.m. Sat: Thurs. one-half day to Mon. 7 a.m.

Section 2.

Lincoln's Birthday will be treated as a floating holiday at the employee's option with prior approval by the First Selectman.

ARTICLE 20 Grievance Procedure

Section 1.

Definition: Grievance. A grievance is defined as and limited to a written complaint involving an alleged violation of or a dispute involving the application or interpretation of a specific provision of the Agreement or of a provision incorporated by reference.

Section 2.

Format: Grievances shall be filed on mutually agreed forms which specify (a) facts, (b) the issue, (c) date of alleged violation, (d) contract section violated, (e) the remedy or relief sought.

A grievance may be amended up to and including Step Π of the grievance procedure so long as the factual basis of the complaint is not materially altered.

Whenever "days" are used in this article, it shall mean "working days."

Section 3.

Time limits: If a grievance in writing is not filed within fourteen (14) working days after the grievant knows or should have known of the act or conditions on which the grievance is based, then the grievance shall be considered to have been waived.

The time limits specified within this article, except for the initial filing, may be extended by mutual agreement of the Union and the Town or its designee, in writing, provided that, if a grievance is not submitted to a higher step in the below procedure, it shall be deemed settled on the basis of the answer in the last step considered. Failure by an administrator or the Town to render his/her decision within the specified time limits shall be deemed to be a denial of the grievance and the grievance shall proceed to the next level.

Section 4.

Step I

Immediate Supervisor. If an employee feels that he/she may have a grievance, the employee and/or Union steward or representative will first discuss the matter with the employee's supervisor, in an effort to resolve the problem informally. If unable to do so, it may be submitted in writing to the Supervisor within seven (7) days after the above meeting. The Supervisor shall reply within five (5) working days to the Steward with a copy to the Union. Those employees reporting directly to the First Selectman will submit grievances in writing directly to the First Selectman at Step II of the grievance procedure.

- Step II <u>First Selectman</u>. If no satisfactory resolution arises, the grievance may be submitted within five (5) days to the First Selectman. The First Selectman shall meet with the grievant to discuss and answer the grievance within ten (10) working days. In case of dismissal, suspension, demotion and class action or union grievance, the grievance shall be submitted directly to Step II
- Step III Mediation. If the grievance is not resolved and the parties mutually agree, the grievance may be submitted to a mediator appointed by the State Board of Mediation and Arbitration for the purpose of helping to resolve the grievance within ten (10) days after receipt of Step II answer. A copy shall be sent to all parties.
- Step IV Arbitration. If a grievance is still not settled, it may be submitted, at the request of the Union, to arbitration. The submission of the grievance shall state the provisions of the contract allegedly violated and the remedy sought.

If the grievance was submitted to mediation, grievances shall be submitted to arbitration in writing and must be filed with the American Arbitration Association (AAA) no later than ten (10) days after the initial mediation session held under Step III above or as of such later date as otherwise mutually agreed in writing.

If the grievance was not submitted to mediation, grievances shall be submitted to arbitration in writing and must be filed with the AAA no later than ten (10) days after receipt of the Step II answer.

The arbitrator's award shall be binding. He shall be bound by and must comply with all the terms of this agreement and shall have no power to add to, subtract from or in any way modify the provisions of this agreement. The cost of arbitration shall be borne equally by both parties.

Nothing in this section shall preclude an arbitrator from ruling on both the arbitrability and the merits of a case or for the Town and the Union from combining grievances.

ARTICLE 21 Insurance Benefits

Section 1.

Effective July 1, 2015, all eligible bargaining unit employees may elect single, two-person, or family coverage under the Town's HDHP/HSA Plan with deductibles of Two Thousand Dollars (\$2,000) for single and Four Thousand Dollars (\$4,000) for two person and family coverage. In and out-of-network benefits share the same deductible. For out-of-network services the member will have an additional responsibility for twenty percent (20%) of the cost of services after the deductible under the cost share maximum ("CSM") reaches Four Thousand Dollars (\$4,000) single (includes deductible) and Eight Thousand Dollars (\$8,000) two person and family (includes deductible). The CSM also includes prescription co-pays after the deductible is satisfied in the amount of \$10.00 generic/\$25.00 formulary/\$40.00 non-formulary.

For the plan year commencing on July 1, 2015, the Town shall fund sixty percent (60%) of the deductible cost through deposits to a Health Savings Account ("HSA") for each employee, with such funding being deposited by July 15, 2015. For the plan year commencing on July 1, 2016, the Town shall fund fifty percent (50%) of the deductible cost through quarterly proportionate deposits to a Health Savings Account ("HSA") for each employee. Employees who are not eligible for an HSA can participate in a Health Reimbursement Account (HRA) with the Town providing the same contributions towards reimbursement as in the HSA. HRA contributions shall be accessible from the commencement of the plan year.

Medical contribution credits equal to one percent (1%) of the applicable premium rates will be applied through employee payroll deductions if the employee is compliant with the Town's Wellness Program. The Town's Wellness Program requires employees to do the following in order to qualify for their medical contribution credit:

- Have their physician complete a Preventative Health Attestation Form indicating they are current for age appropriate screenings:
 - Physical Exam
 - Breast Cancer Screening
 - Colon Cancer Screening
 - Cervical Cancer Screening
- Have their physician provide them with Biometrical results including:
 - LDL, HDL, Total Cholesterol, Blood Glucose, Height, Weight, Body Mass Index, Waist Circumference, Blood Pressure Pulse

Complete an on-line Health Risk Assessment, including Biometrical Results.

For the period from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, employees may elect benefits under the Comp Mix Plan ("Comp Mix") as described in Appendix C. Beginning July 1, 2015 the HDHP/HSA plan shall be the only medical benefit plan offered to bargaining unit employees. The Town shall reimburse any bargaining unit member for deductible costs (including medical and prescription) incurred under the Comp Mix Plan between January 1, 2015 and June 30, 2015.

Section 2.

The Town will pay the full cost of the employee's group life insurance. Said insurance shall be in the amount of \$100,000. In addition, an employee may elect to double his/her life insurance coverage at his/her own expense. An employee who doubles his/her life insurance coverage shall pay the Town's term group rate for the additional life insurance by payroll deduction.

Section 3.

- a) For non-Medicare eligible employees who retire on or after July 1, 1998, medical coverage for the most cost-effective plan offered to Town employees shall be provided for the retiree and the retiree's spouse at the group rate for such benefits for a period not to exceed five (5) years or upon the retiree's eligibility for Medicare with the cost of the monthly premium paid by the retiree. Once an employee opts out of such plan coverage he or she will not be eligible for readmission.
- b) At such time as a retiree who retires on or after July 1, 1998 becomes eligible for Medicare, the Town shall provide for Medicare risk plan coverage as an alternative to Medicare with the cost of the monthly premium paid by the retiree as long as such plans are available to the Town.

Section 4.

All references in this agreement to types of benefits are solely for the purpose of description and identification, and in all cases the terms and provisions of the insurance policies themselves shall govern any claim.

Section 5.

Effective and upon ratification of the 2014-2017 collective bargaining agreement, each member of the bargaining unit shall contribute, through bi-weekly payroll deduction, eighteen percent (18%) of the monthly premium cost for individual, two-person, or family medical, dental, vision and prescription drug benefit coverage under the Comp Mix Plan. Pursuant to the Town's Section 125 Plan, any insurance contribution made by employees shall be made on a pre-tax basis.

Section 6.

Effective July 1, 2015, each member of the bargaining unit shall contribute, through bi-weekly payroll deduction, eighteen percent (18%) of the monthly premium cost for individual, two-person, or family medical, dental, vision and prescription drug benefit coverage under the

HDHP/HSA Plan. Pursuant to the Town's Section 125 Plan, any insurance contribution made by employees shall be made on a pre-tax basis.

Section 7.

Effective July 1, 2016, each member of the bargaining unit shall contribute, through bi-weekly payroll deduction, eighteen percent (18%) of the monthly premium cost for individual, two-person, or family medical, dental, vision and prescription drug benefit coverage under the HDHP/HSA Plan. Pursuant to the Town's Section 125 Plan, any insurance contribution made by employees shall be made on a pre-tax basis.

In addition to the above-referenced premium cost sharing, effective beginning July 1, 2014, and continuing thereafter if premium (or premium equivalent costs) for benefits offered under the Comp. Mix Plan or HDHP/HSA Plan increase from the prior plan year to the next by ten percent (10%) or more, then the parties agree to share evenly in the increased costs above the ten percent (10%) threshold; if the premium (or premium equivalent costs) decrease from the prior plan year to the next by ten percent (10%) or more, then the parties shall evenly share in the decreased costs above the ten percent (10%) threshold. By way of example, if costs under the Comp Mix Plan or HDHP/HSA Plan increase by fifteen percent (15%) beginning July 1, 2014 as compared to the prior year, then employees will pay their regular premium cost sharing and in addition, will be responsible for one-half (1/2) of the premium cost increase above ten percent (10%) (i.e., an additional 2.5% of premium under this hypothetical example).

Section 8.

All employees shall be enrolled in the Anthem Blue Cross Blue Shield Vision plan b with a \$10.00 copay for eye exams and a \$10.00 copay for materials. All employees shall be eligible to receive an annual eye exam.

Section 9.

Upon notification and explanation to the bargaining unit members of the effective changes, the Town may change or alter insurance plans and/or insurance carriers or to decide to self-insure such benefits, provided, however, that any substitute plan will offer substantially equivalent benefits and privileges provided by the plans in effect on the whole and as specified in this Agreement and provided further that it is not the Town's intent to substitute a plan or plans which restrict the employee's right to choose his or her provider of medical services.

Section 10.

As set forth more fully in the long term disability plan design which will be made available to all employees, an employee who is disabled due to an accident or sickness which is not compensable under the Workers' Compensation Act and who has exhausted all of his/her paid leave benefits shall be eligible for weekly accident/sickness disability insurance payments up to 60% of his/her base rate at the time of disability to a maximum of \$2,000 per month. These benefits will be offset by weekly worker's compensation benefits (not to include specific indemnity benefits covering specific loss or disfigurement), and other state or federally mandated benefits the employee receives. In no instance shall such benefits begin until after 90 days of disability. The Town reserves the right to terminate an employee while on disability if circumstances warrant such termination without violating state or federal law.

Section 11.

The Town will provide insurance coverage for the Fleet Maintenance Supervisor's personal tools up to \$15,000 with no deductible. The Fleet Maintenance Supervisor will provide the First Selectman with an inventory of personal tools in use for approval. Under no condition will insurance coverage be provided for tools not included in the inventory. Such inventory shall be updated immediately any time additional personal tools are to be covered.

ARTICLE 22 401(a)/Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan

Section 1. 401(a) Plan.

Full-time employees will be eligible to participate in a Section 401(a) Plan after completing probation with the Town. Plan details will be provided to each eligible employee. Effective July 1, 2009, the Town and employee will each contribute seven and three-quarters (7.75%) percent of base pay only (not including overtime, longevity, etc.). Effective July 1, 2012, the Town and employee will each contribute eight (8.0%) percent of base pay only (not including overtime, longevity, etc.). Employee contributions will be made on a pre-tax basis. The combined contribution by the Town and the employee will not exceed the maximum allowed by law per year. Employees can voluntarily contribute more than the maximum percentages quoted above on an after-tax basis subject to annual limits allowed by law including pre-tax employer and employee contributions. The Town's Contribution to the 401(a) Plan of each bargaining unit employee hired after January 1, 2012 shall vest in accordance with the following schedule:

After one (1) year of service: twenty percent (20%)
After completing two (2) years of service: forty percent (40%)
After completing three (3) years of service: sixty percent (60%)

After completing three (3) years of service: sixty percent (60%)

After completing four (4) years of service: eighty percent (80%)

After completing five (5) years of service: one hundred percent (100%)

Section 2. Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan

Full-time employees shall have the option of contributing to the Town's Section 457 Plan after ninety (90) days of employment in addition to the 401(a) plan described in Section 1 to the maximum contributions allowed by law per year. Plan details will be provided to each eligible employee. Employee contributions that are made to the 457 Plan are in addition to employee contributions made to the 401(a) plan. The Town will not make matching contributions to the 457 Plan.

ARTICLE 23 Safety and Health

Section 1.

Any employee involved in any accident shall immediately report said accident and any physical injuries sustained to his/her supervisor and the Union Steward. The Employer shall notify the Union of all industrial accidents requiring medical attention, "close calls," and unsafe conditions which occur as soon as practical upon their occurrence.

Section 2.

The Employer agrees to continue to make every reasonable effort to provide safe and healthful conditions of work for bargaining unit employees and to make available to said employees protective equipment required by existing state or federal law. Employees are to use the protective equipment provided and to conduct themselves in a safe and responsible manner.

ARTICLE 24 Wages

Section 1.

Employees shall receive their paychecks prior to quitting time every other Friday. Employees leaving on vacation will be given his/her current paycheck on Thursday afternoon, and a vacation paycheck if requested one week in advance of the payroll closing date.

Section 2.

Salary ranges for each job title are attached as Appendix B.

Section 3.

Salaries shall be increased by two and one-quarter percent (2.25%) effective and retroactive to July 1, 2014. Salaries shall be increased by two and one-quarter percent (2.25%) effective July 1, 2015 and by two percent (2.0%) effective July 1, 2016.

Section 4.

Longevity. After the completion of the fifth year of service, longevity compensation shall be paid on July 1st of each fiscal year as follows:

6th to 9th year	\$450
10th to 14th year	\$500
15th to 19th year	\$600
20 and over	\$750

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2012, shall not be eligible for longevity pay.

Longevity payments, like all other wage payments, shall be made by way of direct deposit to an account designated by the employee.

ARTICLE 25 Disciplinary Action

Section 1.

"Disciplinary action" as used in this article shall be defined as limited to verbal warning, written warning, suspension or discharge or exercising a right not to reappoint an appointed official. All disciplinary action shall be for just cause.

Section 2.

All disciplinary actions shall be consistent with the infraction for which discipline is being applied.

Section 3.

Progressive disciplinary procedures will be followed unless the subject infraction is of such a nature to warrant more severe disciplinary action. Such discipline may include verbal warning, written warning, suspension or dismissal.

Section 4.

An employee must be notified prior to being suspended or dismissed. Such notice shall cite the reason for the discipline, effective date of the discipline and the notice of right of appeal.

Section 5.

An employee who is being interviewed concerning an incident which may subject him/her to disciplinary action shall be informed of his/her right to have a Union Steward present prior to the start of the meeting. If the employee decides during an interview he/she needs a representative, the meeting will come to a close until the Union representative can be present.

Section 6.

Whenever it becomes necessary to discipline an employee or apprise an employee of his/her shortcomings, the supervisor vested with that responsibility shall undertake such talks in a manner that will not cause embarrassment to the employee.

Section 7.

All disciplinary actions may be appealed through the established grievance procedure.

Section 8.

Investigation of Citizen Complaints. Citizens who complain about the performance or conduct of an employee shall be encouraged to a) identify themselves, and b) reduce their complaint to a written statement promptly, normally within ten (10) days. In such case where the complaint is not reduced to writing and signed, no employee will be disciplined solely based on an oral complaint without corroborating proof.

In the course of conducting an investigation of an employee's performance or conduct, the Town shall provide the employee who is the subject of the investigation with written notice of the charges and an opportunity to respond before making any decisions as to the consequences, if any, which shall result from the investigation of an employee's performance or conduct.

ARTICLE 26 Savings Clause

Section 1.

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this agreement shall be held for any reason to be inoperative, void or invalid, the validity of the remaining portions of this agreement shall not be affected thereby, it being the intention of the parties in adopting this agreement that no portion thereof or provision herein, shall become inoperative or fail by reason of the invalidity of any other portion or provisions, and the parties do hereby declare that it would have severally approved of and adopted the provisions contained herein, separately and apart from the other. The parties agree to immediately negotiate a substitute for the invalidated articles, section, sentence, clause and phrase.

ARTICLE 27 Union Convention/Training Sessions

Section 1.

The Town shall, upon reasonable advance notice, permit two (2) employees to attend one convention each year without loss of pay or benefits, to be taken as a personal day.

Section 2.

The Town shall, upon reasonable advance notice, permit one (1) employee whom the Union designates, to attend a one day training session per contract year. The time shall be taken without loss of pay or benefits.

ARTICLE 28

Duration

Section 1.

The Town and the Union agree that unless a particular provision is stated to be retroactive, this Agreement shall be effective as of the date of signing and shall remain in full force and effect until June 30, 2017. The Town and the Union agree that only those employees on the active payroll as of the date of signing shall be eligible for any retroactive wages or benefits. This Agreement shall remain in full force and be effective during the period of negotiations.

Section 2.

Either party may notify the other party in writing of its desire to bargain collectively with respect to the successor agreement. Negotiation sessions shall commence on or about January, 2017, with an expected completion date of June 30, 2017.

ARTICLE 29 Pregnancy Leave

Section 1.

The Town will comply with all provisions of the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act in accordance with the policies of the Town.

Section 2.

Paternity Leave. Five days will be granted which shall be deducted from an employee's sick leave balance to a parent at the time of birth, adoption or taking custody of a child. Additional time may be granted to an employee who requests such time or as required by law.

ARTICLE 30

Employee Mileage Expense Reimbursement

Section 1.

Employees who wish to use their vehicles for Town business and who are authorized in advance to do so shall be entitled to reimbursement at the IRS rate and the payment shall be made within a month after submission of an itemization of mileage accrued.

ARTICLE 31 Uniforms

Section 1.

The Fleet Maintenance Supervisor and the Director of Operations shall be provided with eleven (11) rental uniforms, plus two (2) jackets, to be furnished and repaired at the Town's expense. The Fire Marshal shall be provided with one (1) dress uniform to be furnished and repaired at the Town's expense.

Section 2.

The Flect Maintenance Supervisor, the Director of Operations and the Water Department Supervisor who are required by OSHA to wear safety shoes shall receive a two hundred dollar (\$200.00) safety shoe allotment on July 1st of each contract year. Upon documented proof of purchase, the employee will be reimbursed from the allotted amount within the two (2) to four (4) week period following submittal of said documentation.

Section 3.

Personal clothing, watches up to \$100.00, dentures, eyeglasses, or contact lenses, damaged, lost, or destroyed during a work-related activity will be repaired or replaced by the Town, provided such loss, destruction or damage is reported within forty-eight (48) hours of its occurrence and is not in any way due to the employee's own negligence. The forty-eight (48) hour time limit shall be extended due to circumstances beyond an employee's control. All claims of lost personal property shall be subject to approval by the First Selectman or his/her designee. The Town reserves the right to reimburse the employee in lieu of repairing or replacing such items upon proper showing of receipt of purchase.

ARTICLE 32 Volunteer Fire and Ambulance Duty

Section 1.

Any bargaining unit employee who is a member of the Colchester-Hayward Volunteer Fire Department shall be released from work without loss of pay or benefits to respond to emergencies. The officer on the scene will determine which volunteers are needed.

ARTICLE 33 Probationary Period

Section 1.

A new employee will accrue sick leave and vacation time upon hire, and shall be eligible to use sick time after completion of ninety (90) calendar days of work. Vacation time may be used upon completion of the probationary period.

Section 2.

Employees hired during the year shall receive pro-rata personal leave days as follows and shall be allowed to use same at the completion of the probationary period:

Hired on or after January 1 through March 31--3 personal leave days Hired on or after April 1 through June 30--2 personal leave days Hired on or after July 1 through September 30 -- 1 personal leave day

Hired on or after October 1 through December 31 -- 0 personal leave days

Section 3.

New employees shall qualify for holiday pay upon hire.

Section 4.

Insurance coverage for new employees will commence on the ninetieth day of employment. An application of insurance will be completed on date of hire. The waiting period for new hires may be waived by the first Selectman in his/her discretion.

ARTICLE 34 Management Rights

Section 1.

Except as otherwise limited by an express provision of this Agreement the Town reserves and retains, whether exercised or not, all the lawful and customary rights, powers and prerogatives of public management. Such rights include but are not limited to establishing standards of productivity and performance of its employees; determining the mission of an agency and the method and means necessary to fill that mission, including the contracting out of work without eliminating bargaining unit positions; the discontinuing of services, positions, or programs in whole or in part as long as other non-bargaining unit employees do not perform the bargaining unit work in question; the determination of the content of job classifications; the appointment, promotion, assignment, direction and transfer of personnel; the suspension, demotion, discharge or any other appropriate disciplinary action against its employees for just cause; the relief from duty of its employees because of lack of work or for other legitimate reasons; the establishment of reasonable work rules; and the taking of all necessary actions to carry out its mission in emergencies.

Section 2.

Those inherent management rights not restricted by a specific provision of this Agreement are not in any way, directly or indirectly, subject to the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE 35 Professional Development

Section 1.

The Town shall continue to provide necessary training or continuing education to maintain certifications or other forms of job related professional development. All such training, continuing education, or job related professional development must be pre-approved by the First Selectman.

Section 2.

The Town shall pay the registration cost of job-related education or professional development courses or programs which are necessary for bargaining unit employees to obtain and/or maintain required certifications or licenses in their positions as Town employees provided that such employees obtain the approval of the First Selectman prior to registering for the course or

program. It is understood that the number of requests so approved may be limited by the availability of the remaining funds budgeted annually for this purpose.

	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HADAY OF, 2015.	VE SET THEIR HANDS THIS
Danielle McMullen MEUI Representative John Chaponis Union Steward Late FOR THE TOWN OF COLCHESTER Stan Soby First Selectman Date	Danielle McMullen MEUI Representative Date John Chaponis Union Steward	First Selectman

Appendix A

TOWN OF COLCHESTER, CONNECTICUT

ADMINISTRATOR EVALUATION SHEET
Evaluation Date: Evaluation Period From: to
Employee Name: Job Title: Date of Hire:
Department:
Evaluator:
An evaluation will be completed annually using this form. The employee will complete Section A. The Supervisor will complete Section B. After both parties have completed this form a meeting will be scheduled to discuss the evaluation. The employee and the supervisor must sign this evaluation.
Section A. Employee's Comments
1. Accomplishments: (Indicate progress toward and/or completion of job related goals):
3
2. Job Goals: (List your specific job related goals, both short and long term):
3. Career Goals: (List your career goals and any specific assignments for which you have a preference during the next 3 to 5 years. These form the basis for career discussion with your supervisor):

Section B. Supervisor's Evaluation

Read each of the performance criteria and definitions carefully. Understand the general scope, principle and detail of each category before an attempt is made to make your evaluation. Circle the appropriate rating and make the necessary comments that most accurately reflect and support your evaluation. Any rating in the lowest or the highest item of any category must be justified in the appropriate comment section. Use an attachment if more space is needed.

Your evaluation must be objective in that it eliminates personal prejudices, bias, or favoritism. Disregard all general impressions when evaluating specific factors.

All evaluations must be based on demonstrated performance and observed characteristics - not on anticipated or assumed performance. Use factual records, including performance standards, whenever possible.

Evaluate the employee on performance throughout the entire evaluation period. Do not evaluate on single accomplishments or failures or most recent performance.

Do not confuse performance with seniority. An employee with a short service record may be doing a more effective job than an employee with longer service.

Rating Terms:

Unsatisfactory (US)

Exceeds Expectations (EE)

Needs Improvement (NI)

Outstanding (OS)

Satisfactory (SA)

48	41.4	_ 1	67 - 44*	
		96	Setting	
JL 4	VIV	44	DUTUME	

213	11	
.CIE		

US Fa

Comments:

Fails to set goals.

NI SAT Sets goals when directed. Sets readily attainable goals.

EE

Sets aggressive but attainable goals.

OS

Sets highly challenging but realistic goals.

		-	

2. Job Knowledge

Rating

US Knows only the essentials of routine matters.

NI Knowledge adequate for present job, but not informed on related work.

SAT Satisfactory knowledge of present job, with sufficient knowledge of related jobs to effect good

coordination.

EE Well informed on details of own job and essential factors of related jobs.

	Outstanding knowledge on all phases of own and related work,
Comme	ents:
	epting Responsibility
Rating	
US	Unwilling to be held accountable. Entirely dependent. Noncommittal.
NI SAT	Often avoids responsibilities. Reluctant to be committed or to be held accountable. Accepts responsibility to a satisfactory degree. Willing to accept risk of authority and to be hele accountable.
EE	Willing to make commitments and to assume full responsibility for all activities under direct co
OS	Makes commitments and assumes full responsibility including activities not under direct contro
Comme	ents:
	4.400
4 A 153	lity to Plan and Organize
Rating	ity to I fair and Organize
US	Work frequently shows lack of proper planning.
NI	Seems to understand value of planning but needs assistance with routine work.
SAT	Plans routine work satisfactorily but is sometimes not effective with unusual situations.
EE	Plans difficult work in an excellent manner and meets emergency situations promptly.
OS	Highly competent in organizing and directing complicated procedures and operations.
	ents:
Commi	ALG.
5. Jud	gment and Decisiveness
Rating US	Exercises poor judgment. Makes rash decisions or unwilling to make decisions.
Rating US	Exercises poor judgment. Makes rash decisions or unwilling to make decisions. Noncommittal or inclined to snap judgment. Decisions of marginal value.
5. Jud Rating US NI SAT	Exercises poor judgment. Makes rash decisions or unwilling to make decisions. Noncommittal or inclined to snap judgment. Decisions of marginal value. Exercises good judgment. Decisions reasonably prompt and accurate.
Rating US NI SAT EE	Exercises poor judgment. Makes rash decisions or unwilling to make decisions. Noncommittal or inclined to snap judgment. Decisions of marginal value. Exercises good judgment. Decisions reasonably prompt and accurate. Exercises excellent judgment. Decisions generally prompt and accurate.
Rating US NI SAT EE OS	Exercises poor judgment. Makes rash decisions or unwilling to make decisions. Noncommittal or inclined to snap judgment. Decisions of marginal value. Exercises good judgment. Decisions reasonably prompt and accurate.

	trol of Operations
Rating US	Does not know status of expense, schedule or assignments.
NI	Does not adequately control expense, schedule or assignments.
SAT	Maintains satisfactory control of expense, schedule or assignments.
EE	Maintains sansfactory control of expense, senedate of assignments. Maintains consistent expense controls and performs trade off on expense and schedule or
1,5,125	assignments in all areas with advance notice of unfavorable performance in either.
os	Excellent control of all factors of his/her operations (expense, schedule, and personnel assignments
	ents:
7. Qua	lity Assurance
US	Does not assume any responsibility for quality of work performed.
NI	Shows little or no interest in improving quality of work performed.
SAT	Does a satisfactory job of accepting responsibility for quality of work performed.
EE	Willing to make commitments and assume full responsibility towards improving quality
	performance.
OS	Aggressively pursues quality leadership in products and services. Decisions and actions are based
	on improving quality culture and making the Town a recognized quality leader.
Comme	ents:
8. Abil	lity to Improve Methods
Rating	
US	Complacent. Does things as they have always been done.
NI	Makes some effort to change, if directed.
SAT	Improves methods when need is apparent.
EE	Resourceful. Constantly improving ways to do things.
OS	Highly innovative. Outstanding in improving methods regardless of obstacles.
Commo	
9. Abi	lity to Cooperate with Others
Rating	
US	Obstructionist. Thinks only of his/her own unit.
NI	Difficult to secure his/her cooperation.
SAT	Will cooperate when the need is great.

Cooperative. Willing to help out other activities.

EE

OS Exceptionally Comments:				
Overall Rating: Circle		(II - U - U)		
Unsatisfactory	Needs Improvement	Satisfactory	Exceeds Expectation	Outstanding
*Include justification for	overall rating in	the General C	omments (Use	reverse side if necessary)
General Comments:				
4444				
Required Signatures:				
Evaluator's Signature: _		Dat	e:	
I understand that my sig but that I have received		luation does n	ot mean that I a	agree with this evaluation,
Evaluatee's Signature:		Dat	te:	
Evaluatee's Comments:	-			
,			(Use	e reverse side if necessary)

Appendix B Salary Ranges

2014-2015

<u>Title</u>	Salary Range
Assessor	\$51,125 - \$88,958
Finance Director	\$46,013 - \$80,778
Fire Marshal	\$35,788 - \$61,350
Fleet Maintenance Supervisor	\$40,900 - \$80,778
Highway Supervisor	\$40,900 - \$80,778
Social Services Director	\$35,788 - \$51,125
Town Engineer	\$51,125 - \$89,980
Water Department Supervisor	\$40,900 - \$80,778
Youth Services Director	\$35,788 - \$74,643
ZEO/Assistant Planner	\$35,788 - \$61,350
Wetlands Enforcement Officer	\$35,788 - \$55,215
Director of Scnior Services	\$35,788 - \$61,350
Director of Library Services	\$51,125 - \$82,823
Director of Operations	\$61,350 - \$83,845

Appendix B Salary Ranges

2015-2016

<u>Title</u>	Salary Range
Assessor	\$52,275 - \$90,959
Finance Director	\$47,048 - \$82,595
Fire Marshal	\$36,593 - \$62,730
Fleet Maintenance Supervisor	\$41,820 - \$82,595
Highway Supervisor	\$41,820 - \$82,595
Social Services Director	\$36,593 - \$52,275
Town Engineer	\$52,275 - \$92,005
Water Department Supervisor	\$41,820 - \$82,595
Youth Services Director	\$36,593 - \$76,322
ZEO/Assistant Planner	\$36,593 - \$62,730
Wetlands Enforcement Officer	\$36,593 - \$56,457
Director of Senior Services	\$36,593 - \$62,730
Director of Library Services	\$52,275 - \$84,686
Director of Operations	\$62,730 - \$85,732

Appendix B Salary Ranges

2016-2017

<u>Title</u>	Salary Range
Assessor	\$53,321 - \$92,778
Finance Director	\$47,989 - \$84,247
Fire Marshal	\$37,325 - \$63,985
Fleet Maintenance Supervisor	\$42,657 - \$84,247
Highway Supervisor	\$42,657 - \$84,247
Social Services Director	\$37,325 - \$53,321
Town Engineer	\$53,321 - \$93,845
Water Department Supervisor	\$42,657 - \$84,247
Youth Services Director	\$37,325 - \$77,848
ZEO/Assistant Planner	\$37,325 - \$63,985
Wetlands Enforcement Officer	\$37,325 - \$57,586
Director of Senior Services	\$37,325 - \$63,985
Director of Library Services	\$53,321 - \$86,380
Director of Operations	\$63,985 - \$87,446

SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT

between

TOWN OF COLCHESTER

and

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES UNION "INDEPENDENT" (MEUI)

LOCAL 506, SEIU, AFL-CIO, CLC

(TOWN ADMINISTRATORS)

The parties agree that the Town will provide bargaining unit employees with a periodontal rider chosen by the Town and subject to the monthly premium cost sharing for dental benefit coverage pursuant to Article 21, Section 5 of the current collective bargaining agreement. This periodontal rider will be in addition to the dental coverage already provided to all town employees.

Agreed to and Approved by the undersigned.

FOR THE UNION

Danielle McMullen MEUI Representative

Date

FOR THE TOWN

Stan Soby

First Selectman

Date

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made by and between the Town of Colchester (hereinafter the "Town") and Municipal Employees Union "Independent," Local 506, SEIU (hereinafter the "Union"). The Town and the Union hereby agree as follows:

The Director of Operations and Fleet Maintenance Supervisor shall be compensated for overtime pay for all weather related work activity. The following shall become effective only after having accumulated 80 hours of compensatory time, per contract year, for responding to said activities.

The rates used for compensatory and overtime shall be in accordance with overtime rates used for the other Town bargaining units and shall be as follows:

- a. Overtime at time and one-half the equivalent of the employee's hourly rate of pay.
- b. Overtime for Sundays and holidays at two times the equivalent of the employee's hourly rate of pay.
- c. In excess of 12 hours worked, the employee shall receive a 2 hour rest period or the equivalent in the rate of pay.

The Town and the Union agree that this Agreement shall not create a practice or precedent in any respect and shall not under any circumstances be used as evidence in any negotiations, arbitration or other proceedings between them.

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES UNION
"INDEPENDENT," LOCAL 506, SEIU

Danielle McMullen
MEUI Staff Representative

John Chaponis
Union Steward

L 13 2012

Date

TOWN OF COLCHESTER

TOWN OF COLCHESTER

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made by and between the Town of Colchester (hereinafter the "Town") and Municipal Employees Union "Independent," Local 506, SEIU (hereinafter the "Union") in connection with the contract negotiations for a successor to the July 1, 2007-June 30, 2011 Collective Bargaining Agreement. The Town and the Union hereby agree as follows:

The incumbent in the Highway Supervisor position shall take on the role and responsibilities of the Director of Operations effective March 1, 2012. More specifically, the Director of Operations shall be responsible for supervising the various departments of the Town including, but not limited to, fleet maintenance, transfer station, highway and grounds maintenance, as determined by the Town.

Effective and retroactive to July 1, 2011 the Highway Supervisor shall receive a three percent (3%) general wage increase in accordance with Article 24, Section 3 of the 2011-2014 Collective Bargaining Agreement between the parties.

Effective with the date that the Highway Supervisor takes on the role and responsibilities of the Director of Operations his annual salary shall be increased to \$77,000.

Thereafter, he will receive general wage increases as required by Article 24, Section 3 of the 2011-2014 Collective Bargaining Agreement between the parties.

During inclement weather, the Public Works Director shall have the authority to allow the Director of Operations to use a Town-provided vehicle for travel to and from work including use of the vehicles to respond to Town emergencies.

The Town and the Union agree that this Agreement shall not create a practice or precedent in any respect and shall not under any circumstances be used as evidence in any negotiations, arbitration or other proceedings between them.

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES UNION	TOWN OF COLCHESTER
"INDERENDENT," LOCAL 506, SEIU	
10 minules	nun
Danielle McMullen	Gregg-Schuster
MEUI Staff Representative	First Selectman
4/18/12	4/16/12
Date MA	Date
John Chaponis	
Union Steward	
4/13/2012	
Date	

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

TOWN OF COLCHESTER

AND

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES UNION INDEPENDENT, LOCAL 506, SEIU, AFL-CIO, CLC

This Agreement is made by and between the Town of Colchester (hereinafter the "Town") and the Municipal Employees Union Independent, Local 506, SEIU, AFL-CIO, CLC (hereinafter the "Union") representing Town Administrators.

Whereas, the Town and the Union are parties to a Collective Bargaining Agreement, which is in effect from July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2017.

Whereas, Article 1, Recognition, Section 1, outlines the positions, including the Fire Marshal position, that were placed within the Administrative Unit.

Whereas, Article 9, Hours of Work, Section 1, indicates that the Fire Marshal position will generally work no less than forty (40) hours per week, Monday through Friday, 8:30 am - 4:30 pm with lunch on the fly.

Whereas, The Town determined that the Fire Marshal position is required for twenty (20) hours per week based on current operational needs.

Therefore, the parties agree as follows:

- 1. Effective and retroactive to March 29, 2015, the Fire Marshal position shall receive all benefits covered by the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the parties on a prorated basis. This includes but is not limited to the following: Article 14, Sick Leave, Article 16, Vacations, Article 19, Holidays, Article 21, Insurance Benefits, Article 31, Uniforms Etc.
- 2. In determining paid time off, the calculation shall be based on twenty (20) hours (i.e. if the Fire Marshal works four (4) hours per day, Monday through Friday then the he/she shall be paid four (4) hours for all holidays outlined in Article 19).

Agreed to and approved by the undersigned:

For the Union:

Danielle McMullen

MEUI Staff Representative

Date

John Chaponis

MEUI Union Steward

9/23/15 Date For the Town:

Stan Soby

First Selectman

Date

APPENDIX C

Anthem.

CENTURY PREFERRED COMP MIX

Century Proferred is a proferred provider organization (PPO) plan.

COST SHARE PROVISIONS	In-Notwork Member pays:	Out-of-Network Member paus:
Calendar Year Deductible (individual/funtly)	\$250/\$500	\$500/\$1000
Colustrance	20% after deductible up to	40% after deductible up
Coinsurance Maximum (individual/family)	\$1,250 / \$2,500	\$2,500 / \$5,000
Cost Share Maximum (bidiyidual/fantily)	\$1,500 / \$3,000	\$3,000 / \$6,000
Lifetime Maximum	Unlimited	\$1,000,000

PREVENTIVE CARE	In-Network After Deductible Member pays:	Out-of-Network After Deductible Manubar puys:
Well child care	\$0 Consyment, Deductible waived.	40%
Periodic, routine health examinations	\$0 Copayment, Deductible waived	40%
Routine OB/GYN visits	\$0 Consument, Deductible waived	40%
Матилонтарку	\$0 Consyment, Deductible waived	40%
Hearing screening	\$0 Copayment, Deductible waived	-10%
TEDICAL CARE		
Office visits	\$20 Copayment, Deductible waived	40%
Specially, visits	\$30 Consyment, Deductible waived	40%
Outpatient mental health & substance abuse	830 Copaymont, Deductible waived	40%
OB/GYN care	\$30 Consyment, Deductible waived	40%
Malernity care	\$30 Copayment, Deductible waived	40%
Diagnostic lab and x-ray	20%	40%
High-cost outpationt diagnostic The following are subject to copay: MRI, MRA, CAT, CTA, PET, SPECT scens-(Presertifeation is requized)	\$75 to a \$375 annual maximum	40%
Allargy services Office visitalisting Injections—80 visits in 3 years	330 Copayment, Deductible waived	40% 40%
IOSPITAL CARE - Prior authoritation required		
Semi-private room (General/Medical/Surgion/Materialty)	20%	40%
Inpatient mental health & aubstance abuse after 12th visits	20%	40%
Skilled nursing facility - up to 120 days per calendar year	20%	40%
Rehabilitative services - up to 60 days par person par calendar year	20%	40%
Outputient surgery - in a hospital or surgi-conter	20%	40%
MERGENCY CARE		
Walk-lu centers	520 Copnyment, Deductible waived	40%
Urgent care - at participating centers only	\$50 Copayment, Deductible waived	Not Covered
Emergency care—copayment waived if admitted	\$100 Copayrount, Deductible waived	\$100 Copayment, Deductible waive
Ambulance	20%	20%

CHITPRMX

Page 1 of 2

In Competion, Anther plus Deeps one fitte third in a tau
axis of Anther First Biser, but, by Indonesias Houseste
Afthe Disc term and this Anther Anthers
o xigitored many of the fitte Cross and Thus Anther
axis and Thus Charles

Anthem.

OTHER HEALTH CARE	In-Notwork After Annual Deductible Member pays:	Out-of-Network After Annual Deductible Member paus:
Outpatient rehabiblishve services 30 aombined vistt maximum for PT, OT and ST per year, 20 visit maximum for Chiro, Per year, Ptior authorization regidred	\$50 Copayment, Deductible waived	40%
Durable medical equipment / Prosthetic devices Unlimited maximum per calendor year	20%	40%
Diabetic aupplies, drugs & equipment	20%	40%
Infertility - prior authorization required Some restrictions may apply	20%	40%
Home health care 200 visits per momber per calendar year	20%, Defluctible walved	20%, Deductible waived
Hospice	20%	40%
Private Duty Nursing-\$50,000 maximum	20%	40%
Transplants-\$1,000,000 lifetime maximum-Please see description below	20%	40%
Acupuncture	Not Covered	Not Covered
Clastric Bypass	Not Covered	Not Covered

PREVENITYE CARE SCHEDULES

Well Child Care (Including Immunizations)

- 6 exams, birth to age 1
- 5 exams, ages 1 5
- 1 exam every 2 years, ages 6 10
- I exam overy your, ages 11 21

Manunography

- I baseline screening, ages 35-39
- isorcening per year, ages 40+
- Additional exams when medically necessary

Adult Exams

- 1 exam every 5 years, ages 22 29
 - I exam every 3 years, ages 30 39
- 1 exam every 2 years, ages 40 49
- 1 exam every year, agos 50+ Vision Exams: 1 exam every 2 calendar year

Hearing Reamst 1 exam every 2 calendar years

OB/GYN Exams: 1 exam per calendar year

Notes To Benefit Descriptions

- In situations where the monther is responsible for obtaining the accessary prior sutkordaution and fulls to do so, benefits may be reduced or denica.
- Home Health Care services are covered when in lieu of hospitalization, Includes infusion (IV) therapy.
- Home Hould Care services are covered when in lieu of hospitalization, Includes infinition (IV) therapy.
 Members must utilize participating Blue Quality Centers for Transplant hospitals to receive head its for Human Organ & Tissue
 Transplant services. This network of his finest medical transplant programs in the nation is available to members who are candidates
 for an organ or bone marrow transplant. A nurse consultant transplant in case management is dedicated to managing members who
 require organ unifor tissue transplants. Covered services are subject to a lifetime maximum of \$1,000,000.

 Members are responsible for the balance of charges billed by one-of-network providers after payment for covered services has been made by
 Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield according to the Comprehensive Schedule of Professional Services.

Please refer to the Special Offers anthom brothere in your carollment kit for information on the discounts we ofter an health-related products and

This does not constitute your health plan or insurance pollop. It is only a general description of the plan. The following are examples of services NOT covered by your Century Preferred Plan. Please refer to your Subscriber Agreement Certificate of Coverage Summary Bookies for more deadle: Connecte surgaries and services; custodial care; genetia lesting; hearing add; refractive and surgary; services and supplies related to, as well as the performance of, see change operations; surgical and non-surgical services related to TMI syndrome; travel expanses; vision therapy; services rendered prior to your contract effective date or rendered after your contract termination date; and workers' companisation.

A product of Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield serving residents and businesses in the State of Connecticut.

In Comprehence, Anahom thee clear and blue thingled to a tacky ages of Exchan Harlin Plane, here, no indigentent throwse within The Trans and their Shallo Tackethinkes. If the transaction from the Comprehence of the Comprehence has been been been a comprehenced the Comprehence of the Comprehence o

-With Cost of Care

\$100/\$300 Annual Deductible 85 Cupuyinent Generic Drugs \$25 Copayment Listed Brand-Name Drugs \$40 Copayment Non-Listed Brand-Name Drugs Unlimited Annual Muximum

Description of Benefits		You Pay:
Aroual Deductible (mehridual/family)	The amount which must be paid for covered drugs in a calondar year prior to the application of copayments,	\$100/\$300
Tier 1: Generic Drugs	The term "generic" refers to a prescription drug that is considered non-proprietary and is not protected by a trademark. It is required to meet the same bioequivalency test as the original brand-name drug. Tier I copayment applies.	\$5
Tier 2: Listed Brand-Name Drugs	The term "listed brand-name" refers to a brand-name prescription drug identified on the formulary by Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield. The 2 consystent applies.	\$25
Tier 3; Non-Listed Brand-Name Drugs	The term "non-listed brand-name" refers to a brand-name prescription drug not identified on the formulary by Anthom Blue Cress and Blue Shield. Tier 3 copayment applies.	S40
	I, ANIENTE, CONTRACTOR OF THE	Plan Pays:

Unlimited Por member per calendar year Annual Maximum

How To Use The 3-Tier Managed Prescription Drug Program

The 3-Tier Managed Prescription Ding Program incorporates different levels of cost shares. An Annual Deductible must be satisfied prior to covered drugs being subject to tiered copayments, as defined in the chart above. The formulary lists generics and brand-name drugs that have been selected for their quality, safety and cost-effectiveness. These listed drugs have lower member copayments than nun-listed drugs (but may not have a lower overall cost in all instances.) You minimize your copayments when you use generic prescriptions and listed brand-name prescriptions. You'll still have coverage for non-listed brand-name drugs, but at a higher cost share. Talk to your provider shout using generic days or listed brand-name drugs included on the formulary. You'll have lower copayments when you use these drugs. Once your deductible is met:

- You will be responsible for one copsyment when purchasing a 30-day supply of prescription drugs from a participating retail pliamacy.
- You'll be responsible for two copayments when purchasing a 31-day to 90-day supply of maintenance drugs through the mailorder program.

Generic Substitution: Prescriptions may be filled with the generic equivalent when available.

- When you purchase a generic drug at a participating pharmacy, you'll only be responsible for a \$5 copayment.
- When a generic equivalent is available and you obtain the beard name version, you will be responsible for the Tier 3 copayment plus the difference in dest between the generic and brand name drug. This provision applies unless your provider obtains Prior Authorization. When Prior Authorization is obtained (at the discretion of Author Blue Cross & Blue Shield), you will be responsible only for the Tier 3 coppyment.

Connection (Concurrent Drug Utilization Review)

Connection works with the estail phermacy's standard guidelines to provide a second level of quality and sufety checks. The process, which is provided on-line as part of the electronic claims filing process, helps promoto access to safe, appropriate, cost-effective medications for members. Connection involves a series of rules or guidelines, which identify potential medication therapy issues and deliver a message to the pharmacy by computer before the medication is dispensed. The process alerts the pharmacist of potential issues such as drug-to-drug interactions, refills requested too close together, incorrect dosing or drug duplications.

You must complete 85% of your prescription medication before you can obtain another refill at the pharmacy

Prior Authorization May be required on certain medication

Anthem 4

Pharmacy Programs

Voluntary Mall-service Program

Mombers have access to Anthem Rx, the voluntary mail-service drug program for members who regularly take one cormore types of maintenance drugs. Members can order up to a 90-day supply of these medications and have them delivered directly to their home. The \$100/\$300 dechetible, \$5 generic/\$25 listed brand-name/\$40 non-listed brand-name copayment and Unlimited annual maximum apply. When ordering a 31-day to 90-day supply, after your deductible is met, two copayments will apply, as follows: \$10- generic/\$50 listed brand-name/\$80 non-listed brand.

Step Therapy is another element of C-DUR that consists of specialized programs that review pharmacy claims submitted for a member against his/her prescription profile and can be used to assist in controlling utilization and promoting quality, cost-effective drug therapies for patients. All therapy protocols developed by APM no reviewed and approved by the P&T Committee. The current drugs affected by step therapies are; Ambleu CR, Arthorotec, Celebrox, Enbrel, elidet, Lunesta, Monopril, Penise, Prilosec, Provacid, Rozerem & Zegerld

A step therapy is requiring drug X, Y, or Z prior to receiving drug A. Step thempy protocols are built in the claims processing system to search the member's history for the required drugs. If the claim history does not indicate the member has had drug X, Y, or Z; drug A will reject at the point of service pharmacy. The member, pharmacy or physician may contact Anthem Prescription Costomer Service to clarify the claim rejection.

An Next Ex representative roviews the criteria with the catter. The catter is advised if the request is approved or more information is required.

If additional information to needed, the member, pharmacy, or Anthem Prescription may contact the physician. The physician may

not met if the information does not match the step therapy protocol. The caller is informed of the status of the request.

supply the additional information via tetephone or fax. An Next Rx support Specialist reviews the additional information and compares it to the step therapy protocol. The request will be approved and authorization entered into the pharmacy claim processor if the information matches the step therapy protocol. Criteria is

National Pharmacy Network

Members also have access to a notwork of more than 53,000 retail pharmacles throughout the country. Members may call 1-888-207-4214 to locate a participating pharmacy when traveling outside the state.

Nou-participating Pharmacles

Members who fill prescriptions at a non-paticipating pharmacy are responsible for payment at the time the prescription is filled. Members must submit claims to Authorn Blue Cross and Blue Shield for relimbursement, and payment will be sent to the member. Members who use non-participating pharmacies will pay 20% of the in-network allowance, plus the difference between Authern Blue Cross and Blue Shield's payment and the pharmacist's actual charge.

- Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Stield will provide coverage for prescription drugs dispensed by a participating pharmacy when prescription drugs are deemed medically necessary based on specific criteria and dispensed pursuant to a prescription issued by a participating physician or by a non-participating physician, subject to deductible and copayment.
- Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield will not be liable for any injury, claim or judgment resulting from the dispensing of any drug covered by this plan. Anthem Riue Cross and Plue Shield will not provide benefits for any drug prescribed or dispensed in a manner contrary to normal medical practice.
- Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield reserves the right to apply quantity limits to specified drugs as listed on the formulary. If a member requires a greater supply, the member's provider can follow the prior authorization process.

Prescription Drug Eligibility

Eligible prescription drug benefits are limited to injectable insulin and those drugs, biologicals, and compounded prescriptions that are required to be dispensed only according to a written prescription, and included in the United States Pharmacopoeia, National Formulary, or Accepted Dontal Remedies and New Drugs, and which, by law, are required to bear the legend: "Caudon-Federal Law prohibits dispensing without a prescription" or which are specifically approved by the Plan.

Benefits are limited to no more than a 30-day supply for covered drugs purchased at a reutil pharmacy, and no more than a 90-day supply for covered drugs purchased by mall order. All prescriptions are subject to the quantity limitations imposed by state and

This drug rider does not provide drugs dispensed by other than a licensed, retail pharmacy or our mail order service; any drug not required for the treatment or provention of illness or injury; vaccines or allergente extracts; devices and appliances; needles and

Anthem.

syringes that are not prescribed by a provider for the administration of a covered drug; prescriptions dispensed in a hospital or skilled aursing facility; over-the-counter or non-legend drugs; antibucturial samps detergents, shampons, toolhantes/gels and manyburgh without

Benefits for prescription birth control are covered for most groups. However, such coverage is optional if your group is solf-insured or a bana fide religious organization. Check with your benefits administrator.

This is not a legal contract. It is only a general description of the \$100/8300 deductible, \$5 generic/\$25 listed brand-name/\$40 non-listed brand-name 3-Tier Managed Prescription Drug Program with an Chilmited annual maximum. Please consult the Evidence of Coverage or prescription drug rider for a complete description of benefits and exclusions applicable to your coverage.

th variant test, Academ wise Egyen and Nice thinked or a trees came of Articles Keethe Jisha, Agai, as independent licensing of the sites throughout pass for thinked for articles of the Start for the Start for the Start for the Start of th